
 

 

 

Request for Proposals for 

Public Relations and Marketing Services 

ADDENDUM No. 2 

January 21, 2022 

 

The City of Naples Airport Authority Request for Proposals for Public Relations and Marketing Services 

is amended by the following clarifications or additions. If any provisions of this Addendum conflict with 

the existing RFP, then this Addendum will control and is hereby made a part of the RFP documents. All 

other provisions in the RFP remain in effect as previously published. 

Proposers shall acknowledge receipt of any and all addenda in their transmittal letter. 

 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

Q1.  Please provide the name of the firm(s) currently (or most recently) providing these services.  

 

A1. Aviatrix Communications, LLC.   

 

Q2. How long has the incumbent firm serviced the airport? 

 

 

A2. Beginning in May 2021 

 

 

Q3. What is/was the length of the incumbent firm’s current contract? 

 

 

A3. Through April 30, 2022 

 

 

Q4. What is the current annual budget assign to that firm? 



 

 

 

 

A4. The Communications Department has a budget of $330,000 for FY 2022 though that 

amount is for all communications activities and not solely allocated to this contract.  The 

airport budget can be found at: https://www.flynaples.com/wp-content/uploads/Budget-

FY-2022-Final.pdf  

 

Q5. What is the length of the contract for these services once awarded? 

 

 

A5. The length of the contract is one (1) year with three (3) optional one-year renewals for a 

total of four (4) years. 

  

Q6. Is there a current budget assigned, allocated or anticipated for the new firm under a new 

contract?  If so, what is that amount, and are there any lines of assignment for any of the 

elements mentioned in the RFP?  If so, has a separate media budget been established? 

 

 

A6. The Communications Department has a budget of $330,000 for FY 2022 though that 

amount is for all communications activities and not solely allocated to this contract.  The 

airport budget can be found at: https://www.flynaples.com/wp-content/uploads/Budget-

FY-2022-Final.pdf 

 

Q7. On page #8 of the RFP, it states that, “The full response shall not exceed forty (40) pages and 

shall include all resumes requested in section V and the forms shown in the Exhibits. Blank 

tabs may not be used to delineate sections.” The Exhibits that are included in the RFP span 

from pages 15-47 for a total of 33 pages. Does this count toward the 40 total pages that we 

are permitted in our RFP response? 

 

 

A7. The submission instructions indicate that the 40-page limit includes any resumes the firm 

submits as well as any information needed to adequately respond per Section V. The 

exhibits are not required to be submitted and are provided as supplemental information 

and examples. 

 

 

Q8. How many agencies will be selected to present for the interview stage? 

 

 

A8. A maximum of four (4) firms will be shortlisted to present to the Consultant Selection 

Committee. 

 

Q9. Do you have an internal marketing team? 
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A9. The NAA has a Communications & Community Outreach Manager and a 

Communications Specialist position.   

 

Q10. Do you have specific, measurable goals as related to the services outlined in this RFP? 

 

 

 

Q10. The NAA continuously evaluates the quality, timeliness, innovation and responsiveness 

of the consultant’s work throughout the contract. 

 

Q11. Who are the key decision makers on deciding the agency that will be awarded the services 

in this RFP?  Could you provide the names and titles of these individuals? 

 

 

A11. Communications Manager, Zachary Burch and Deputy Executive Director Diane Cooper 

will shortlist no more than 4 firms. The selected firm will be determined by the NAA’s 

Consultant Selection Committee (CSC) consisting of Commissioner Rick Ruppert and 

Commissioner Michael Lenhard.  Other Commissioner may opt to participate in the 

meeting.  The full NAA Board will then be asked to approve the CSC ranking at the 

March Board Meeting. 

 

 

Q12. Do you currently work with an agency or have you in the past?  If so, who is it and were 

you satisfied with their performance?  If so, do they have the opportunity to respond to this 

RFP? 

 

 

A12. Yes, the Authority is currently under contract with Aviatrix Communications, LLC, who 

provided satisfactory performance.    The current contract is ending and any eligible firm 

is able to respond to the RFP.  

 

Q13. What is your approval process for marketing initiatives/projects? Who is the decision 

maker? 

 

 

A13. Marketing initiatives and projects may be suggested by the NAA or the consultant.  All 

work will be approved by the Communications Manager or member of Executive 

Management. 

 

Q14. Do your leadership/key spokespeople need professional media training?  

 

 

 

A14. Training is always helpful though this is not necessarily the primary focus of this   

contract. 

 



 

Q15. Are speaking engagements already secured? How many speeches/presentations need to be 

prepared, and what is the length of each?  

 

 

 

A15.  NAA staff speaks and presents to various neighborhood and community groups 

throughout the year.  The presentations vary in length and content based on the desires of 

the group.  Some are currently scheduled though assistance in securing future 

opportunities may be requested. 

 

Q16. Can you provide more information about the support needed for trade show(s)?  

 

 

 

A16.  NAA staff attends various industry trade shows throughout the year.  The consultant may 

be required to help with informational handouts, booth design, giveaways and logistics to 

ensure a positive experience for staff and attendees. 

 

Q17. Are you also interested in professional PowerPoint presentations (slide decks)? 

 

 

 

A17. Yes, many of the NAA presentations utilize PowerPoint or other accompanying 

information and graphics. 

 

Q18. What types of videos need to be produced and how often? Will this require multiple shoot 

locations and multiple days? What are the purpose of the video(s)?  

 

 

 

A18. The NAA may be interested in producing videos that show the importance and value of 

the airport to the community.  These will primarily be shot at the airport, though it is 

possible that other locations may be required. 

 

Q19. How many collateral pieces will need to be translated?  

 

 

 

A19. A minimal amount, but it is helpful if the consultant has access to translation services, if 

needed. 

 

Q20. Do you have an established calendar of events and promotions? What types of events, how 

often do they occur and what services are needed for each?  

 

 

 



 

A20. The NAA participates in numerous outreach and community events.  From speaking to 

groups, airport tours, events hosted at the airport and sponsoring and participating in 

other community events, the NAA is active in the community and looking to increase 

those efforts going forward.  No formal calendar exists. 

 

Q21. For the website, would it be a redesign of the current site with the same, yet improved, 

content? Would the page count and navigation be similar? Are their specific functionalities 

needed? Are you interested in off-page paid SEO strategies, or are you referring to organic 

on-page SEO services?  

 

 

 

A21. The NAA would require the consultant to host and maintain the current website.  

Improvements to the current page are welcome though a complete redesign is not 

anticipated.  Staff is open to all proposed SEO improvement strategies. 

 

Q22. Do you already have a crisis communications plan? Have you had to implement it, and if 

so, was it effective?  

 

 

 

A22. No, the NAA does not currently have a crisis communications plan. 

 

Q23. Can you be more specific on the number of case studies and market surveys to be 

developed and conducted? How often will you survey various audiences and how many 

respondents are required?  

 

 

 

A23. As an engaged partner, the NAA surveys customers, tenants, staff and the public.  Some 

surveys are ongoing throughout the year while others may only happen once a year.  

 

Q24. How many white papers per month?  

 

 

 

A24. This varies based on the month.  Some months may have zero and others may require 

multiple. 

  

Q25. Can you be more specific as to the number and format of the wide range of marketing 

collateral products? 

 

 

 

A25. The Consultant may be requested to create flyers, infographics, promotional material, 

handouts, displays or other materials to help communicate the airport’s message. 



 

 

Q26. Branding and communications guides can be quite extensive. Can you share an example 

and/or provide more detail about the various guides requested? Would the guide for 

external audiences be more concise? What external audiences do you anticipate utilizing 

the guide?  

 

 

 

A26. The communications guide or plan would contain a detailed plan for all communications 

efforts between the airport and the various audiences, including, the public, elected 

official, airport tenants, pilots and airport staff.  Branding guidelines would detail the 

appropriate use of branding for both internal and external audiences. 

 

Q27. Has an integrated marketing plan been executed in the past? What was the budget for 

professional services fees, media/advertising costs and other hard costs?   

 

 

 

A27. A fully completed communications plan has not been implemented to date. 

 

Q28. Bullet #1 --‐ In order to develop and adhere to a strategic plan, can you please advise on the 

activity of research within the last three years? 

 

 

 

A28. The authority has conducted surveys of passengers, employees and stakeholders at the 

airport.  Comments and feedback are also solicited from airport customers and the 

general public. 

 

Q29. Bullet #13 --‐ Is the Authority currently using influencers for its awareness / Social 

Listening? 

 

 

 

A29. No. 

 

Q30. Bullet #13 --‐ Please specify if a Blueprint has ever been created in order to carry through 

the Media and industry relations and placement. 

 

 

A30. No. 

 

Q31. Bullet #13 – Is the media placement (buying) conducted by a third party? 

 

 

 



 

A31. No, media placement is primarily purchased by the authority. 

 

Q32. Bullet #13 – Specify the activity and budget for the past three years and each of the arenas 

where the activity has been placed. 

 

 

A32. This item includes all advertising and media outreach and all efforts to create collateral 

and information for those efforts.  In FY 2022 the communications budget is $330,000 of 

which $44,000 is allocated for advertising.  In FY 2021 the communications budget was 

$202,000 of which $10,000 was allocated for advertising.  In FY 2020 the 

communications budget was $242,000 of which $15,000 was allocated for advertising.   

 

Q33. Bullet #10 --‐ Please explain which main brand communications platforms Naples Airport 

Authority is using as of today. 

 

 

 

A33. Facebook, Instagram and LinkedIn. 

 

Q34. Bullet #10 --‐ How is long--‐form content (whitepapers, eBooks, etc.) allocated within the 

full array of content volume? 

 

 

 

A34. There is not specific allocation as the amount varies based on need and project. 

 

Q35. Bullet #10 --‐ What is the proportion of long--‐form to derivative / amplification content? 

 

 

 

A35. There is not specific allocation as the amount varies based on need and project. 

 

Q36. Bullet #10 --‐ Please explain what levels of digital maturity the Authority has achieved in 

recent years; explain areas of digital maturity that need to be urgently addressed. 

 

 

 

A36. The Authority’s social media accounts only began in 2022.  Growth in the number or 

followers is important as we continue on social media. 

 

Q37. Bullet #2 --‐ Specify if there are current internal and external branding guides available to 

discuss its results. 

 

 

A37. Minimal branding guidelines including logos and approved colors have been determined. 

 



 

Q38. Bullet #17 – Specify the activity needed on Special Events, Promotion planning and 

coordination. 

 

 

A38. The consultant may be requested to plan events at the airport or off-site events that the 

airport will participate in.   This could require determining invite lists, venues, designing 

invitations, arranging vendors and promotional materials for the event. 

 

Q39. Bullet #2 --‐ How many (if any) have been produced in the past three years? 

 

 

 

A39. There have been no completed guidelines. 

 

Q40. Bullet #2 --‐ Please offer an overview on third--‐party vendors the agency will be working 

with, such as PR / External teams, video / podcast production vendors, etc. 

 

 

 

A40. The Authority will work with the consultant to determine what other outside vendors may 

be necessary to accomplish a task. 

 

Q41. Bullet #21 – The activities described on this particular bullet require physical labor for 

photography, and video production, as well as written and post--‐production. Please specify 

on the current activity and future projections. 

 

 

 

A41. The Authority has previously used various vendors to produce photos and videos.  It is 

anticipated that this will continue in order to support the Authority’s efforts to connect 

with target audiences. 

 

Q42. Bullet #4 --‐ Specify the yearly work--‐flow in creation of new creative materials (TV, 

RADIO, DIGITAL / SM, PRINT, PR). 

 

 

 

A42. The Authority has typically utilized several print advertisements (5 – 10) and press 

releases (15+) to connect with target audiences.  Social Media is a new medium for those 

efforts.  The Authority has not used TV or radio advertisements. 

 

Q43. Bullet #8 --‐ Specify the work--‐flow for the past three years. 

 

 

 



 

A43. The workload varies by year.  Typically, the Authority does one or more press releases 

per month.  Articles, information for media, executive staff and airport representatives 

are produced as needed for events or based on specific topics of interest. 

 

Q44. Bullet #19 – Specify the current activity (collateral pieces such as videos, newsletters and 

handouts or postcards). 

 

 

 

A44. The airport produces various handouts, flyers, information, photos, videos for use when 

interacting with target audiences.  The authority also produces a monthly newsletter for 

staff and airport users. 

 

Q45. Bullet #13 – Is the media placement (buying) conducted by a third party? 

 

 

A45. No, media placement is primarily purchased by the authority. 

 

Q46. Bullet #13 – Specify the activity and budget for the past three years and each of the arenas 

where the activity has been placed. 

 

 

A46. The Authority primarily places advertisements in local magazines targeting new and 

relocating residents and in industry magazines targeting pilots and other industry groups.  

In FY 2022 the advertising budget is $44,000.  In FY 2021 the advertising budget was 

$10,000.  In FY 2020 the advertisement budget was $15,000. 

 

 

Q47. Bullet #6 --‐ Specify on current Partners working in conjunction with the Naples Airport 

Authority as these are important extensions. 

 

 

 

A47. The airport often works with other community service tenants based at the airport 

including the Humane Society, Sheriff’s Office, City of Naples Fire, Collier Mosquito 

Control, Collier EMS and other airport partners. 

 

Q48. Bullet #7 --‐ When you refer to coordination of production of various aviation, technical 

and marketing AWARD submissions, is this in reference to the AWARD classification 

available for these categories. 

 

 

A48. This is in reference to assisting or leading in the development of submissions for various 

industry and other awards that the airport may be eligible for. 

 

Q49. Bullet #11 – Specify the work--‐flow currently in terms of internal communication and 

outreach. 



 

 

 

A49. Internal communication with airport staff is critical and the Authority expects that the 

consultant will assist in continuing to improve those efforts. 

 

Q50. Bullet #20 – Specify the multi--‐lingual services mostly needed. 

 

 

A50. The consultant may need to provide translation services for materials or to interact with 

the public if requested. This is not likely to be used frequently, though the consultant 

should have the ability in place if needed. 

 

Q51. Bullet #12 – Specify the yearly activity in terms of PR (Speeches, Presentations, Media 

Interviews, Community and Stakeholder relations, Reputation Management, Employer 

branding, Sponsorships, events management and Trade Show support). 

 

 

 

A51. Public Outreach is a critical component of the NAA’s communication goals and 

depending on need, project and program all of these activities may be needed to 

successfully accomplish the goals of bullet 12 and the NAA.   


